Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir y Fﬂlnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShII‘E

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: ClIr Richard Jones (Chairman)

. . CS/NG
Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman,
Clive Carver, Peter Curtis, lan Dunbar, 12 April 2013
Ron Hampson, Patrick Heesom, Trefor Howorth,
Richard L|OYd, Mike Lowe, Paul ShOttOﬂ, Tracy Waters 01352 702331

lan Smith, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and

tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk
Arnold Woolley y @ I

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 18TH APRIL, 2013 at 10.00 AM to consider the
following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March
2013.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



CUSTOMER SERVICES AS A FLINTSHIRE FUTURES WORKSTREAM
(Pages 13 - 16)

Report of Head of ICT and Customer Services enclosed.

FAIR DEBT POLICY (Pages 17 - 28)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13 MONTH 10 (Pages 29 - 70)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 3 - OCTOBER - DECEMBER
2012 (Pages 71 - 78)

Report of Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
enclosed.

INFORMATION COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE DATA PROTECTION AUDIT
(Pages 79 - 82)

Report of Democracy and Governance Manager enclosed.
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 83 - 88)
Report of Housing and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Facilitator enclosed.




81.

82.

Agenda Item 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14 MARCH 2013

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held at Delyn Committee Room, County
Hall, Mold CH7 6NA on Thursday, 14 March 2013

PRESENT: Councillor Richard Jones (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman, Clive Carver, lan Dunbar,
Patrick Heesom, Richard Lloyd, Mike Lowe, Paul Shotton, lan Smith,
Nigel Steele-Mortimer and Arnold Woolley

SUBSTITUTES:
Councillors: Joe Johnson for Trefor Howorth and Mike Reece for Peter Curtis

APOLOGY:
Councillor Ron Hampson

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillor Billy Mullin (Cabinet Member for Corporate Management) and
Councillor Robin Guest

CONTRIBUTORS:

Leader of the Council, Chief Executive, Karen Lees from Wales Audit Office for
Minute number 83, Head of Finance, Accountant, ICT Operational Services
Manager, Customer Services Team Leader and Head of Legal and Democratic
Services

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager, Housing and Learning Overview & Scrutiny
Facilitator and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 28 and 31 January
2013 and 14 February 2013 had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

14 February 2013

Councillor M. Bateman thanked officers for the response that she had
received to her question on the overspend of £0.044m in relation to additional
superannuation costs but explained that she required further information. It was
agreed that she would speak with the Head of Finance following the meeting.

Councillor H. Bateman asked whether the gas engines at the landfill sites
had been inherited or purchased by Flintshire County Council. The Member
Engagement Manager explained that they were inherited when Flintshire County
Council took over Alyn & Deeside District Council in 1996.

Page 1



83.

Councillor P. Shotton thanked officers for the response he had received on
the Flintshire County Council Bond Scheme and welcomed the help that it
provided to young people.

Councillor P.G. Heesom referred to the comments of the Leader of the
Council at the previous meeting on the need to approach the redesign of the
management structure in a methodical manner. He felt that this was a high
priority in the future of the Council and requested that it be taken forward as early
as possible and that it be as inclusive as it could be. The Leader of the Council
reminded Members that the Chairman of this Committee was a representative on
the Flintshire Futures Board and that updates would be reported back to
Members.

Councillor A.l. Dunbar said that it was important that meetings were not
arranged to clash with meetings already in the diary and referred to a recent
meeting of Planning Strategy Group which had to be cancelled due to a clash of
meetings. The Member Engagement Manager advised that he would speak to
Councillor Dunbar following the meeting.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENT LETTER (WAO)

The Chief Executive introduced Karen Lees from the Wales Audit Office
(WAO) to the meeting. He explained that the report had been approved by
Cabinet and noted by the Audit Committee at its recent meeting.

Ms. Lees introduced the report to advise the Committee of the Council’s
Improvement Assessment Letter 2013 from the Auditor General for Wales. She
explained that the assessment had been undertaken to establish whether the
Council was working effectively and efficiently.

Ms. Lees provided a detailed presentation on the report and highlighted
the following areas:-

e the Council had discharged its improvement planning duties under the
Local Government Measure but it should ensure that it acted more in
accordance with Welsh Government Guidance.

o the 10 priorities which represented the Council’'s Improvement Objectives
complied with at least one of the seven ‘aspects of improvement’
described in the measure.

o the presentation of the plan could be improved to achieve the delivery of
two functions to provide an internal management tool and an external
facing document for the public

e the Council acknowledged that, in any particular year some of its
Improvement Objectives would receive greater attention and priority than
others so that its focus in a single year was more sharply defined to
encourage citizens to engage more fully with the Council’s planning and
performance.

Page 2



e The Annual Performance Report complied with the measure but it was
reported the Council should ensure that it acted more in accordance with
Welsh Government Guidance.

e The report was published on time and included an explanation of how its
content contributed to the Council’s statutory duty to ‘make arrangements
to secure continuous improvement and account for it’.

e Flintshire’s performance in 2011-12 was better than the national average
in over two-thirds of the statutory and non-statutory national indicators.

e The report included a clear overall assessment, using a ‘Red, Amber,
Green’ (RAG) colour coding, of how well the Council considered that it
performed during 2011-12 against each of its 10 Improvement Objectives.

e it was a long and detailed document and although it was clearly written on
the whole, it did not enable the reader to grasp readily a succinct
evaluation of what the Council intended to achieve during the year, the
resulting benefits to the public and what needed to be improved in the
future.

e Social Services and Education had produced mature service-specific
analyses of their performance, but this maturity was not fully replicated in
the Council’'s Annual Performance Report.

¢ the Council’s on-going review of its governance arrangements was wide-
ranging and well-evidenced and the accuracy of the Council’s performance
data had improved but there remained scope to improve the use of data in
the Council’s self-evaluation.

In conclusion, Ms. Lees said that there were no formal recommendations
in the letter but four proposals for improvement had been suggested.

Councillor A.P. Shotton, the Leader of the Council, reiterated the
comments made at the Cabinet meeting and welcomed the comments made by
the WAO in the Assessment Letter. He emphasised the importance of taking the
comments on board and addressing the issues raised when publishing an
updated Improvement Plan.

The Chief Executive welcomed the report and reflected that the letter
overall represented a ‘clean bill of health’.  There were no statutory
recommendations and a response had been made on the four proposals as good
and established local practice. The first proposal on priorities and resources was
significant; the remaining three proposals were more technical. He commented
that the Improvement Plan would be better published for the municipal year not
the financial year. A selection of priorities for the year would be made by the
Cabinet within the Plan with an extract summary published on the Council's
website for public interest and engagement.

Councillor P.G. Heesom referred to the governance arrangements and
said that in his opinion, the corporate management structure was no longer fit for
purpose. In referring to the Annual Performance Report he felt that the Council
had a duty to be fairly critical. He said that the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) was an essential part of the framework. In referring to the Estyn self-
evaluation process, he said that there were issues which needed addressing and
he felt that the assessment was worse than the adequate score which had been
reported. The Leader of the Council welcomed some of Councillor Heesom’s
comments and concurred that the MTFP was important but said that the

Page 3



84.

objectives for the year could not be done in isolation and that work which was
being undertaken would be reported on in due course. The Chief Executive said
that the work on the MTFP would be far-reaching. On the self evaluation process
on education he said that it had been done well as a process and added that the
Council was no longer in the ‘adequate’ banding following the Estyn monitoring
visit.

In response to the comments made, Ms. Lees said that the Council could
be more outcome focused and that the term ‘adequate’ for education was not a
negative phrase but was used because the strengths had been outweighed by
the need for improvement.

Councillor A. Woolley welcomed the report but raised concern that ‘plain
language’ was not always used in the report.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

PROPOSED REGIONAL EMERGENCY PLANNING SERVICE

The Chief Executive introduced a report to allow the Committee to
comment on the report which had been submitted to Cabinet on 19 February
2013.

He reminded Members that it was a small service which had a low
financial value and risk. It was reported that in North Wales, the configuration
was five separate service units with a shared service in Flintshire and
Denbighshire. He spoke of the recent issues which the Emergency Planning
Service had been involved with which included the recent floodings at St. Asaph.
The proposal was to provide a regional service with a sub-regional service
structure, a regional manager leading one hub and the other being led by a
Deputy regional manager and an Emergency Planning Officer in each local
authority. The Chief Executive felt that the proposal for a regional service would
give Flintshire a more resilient service, would lead to improved partnership
working and would meet Ministerial expectations. He suggested that an annual
monitoring report could be considered by the Committee and that a report
following any major incidents be submitted to Members.

The Chairman spoke of his experience of emergency planning and
explained that local input was still needed in the development of a regional plan.
He concurred with the suggestion for Committee to receive an annual update and
a debrief report when necessary. Councillor A.l. Dunbar raised concern that a
regional manager would not be based at both hubs. The Chief Executive
responded that he was confident that this would work well and reiterated the
comments about the need for local knowledge when developing the plan.
Councillor A. Woolley referred to one of the recommendations that Flintshire
would host the new service and lead the transition to the new service. He
commented on the need to ensure that there were adequate resources in place
to carry out the work required. He raised concern that the reduction of regional
costs to £75,000 per annum would be consumed by inflation but welcomed the

Page 4



85.

overall intent. The Chief Executive confirmed that updates would be provided to
a future meeting in the transition and post-implementation stages.

In response, the Chief Executive said that saving money was not the
objective of the plan but said that there would be a minor cost benefit. He
explained that resilience and best use of resources were challenges for the future
but commented on examples of cross border working, ‘gold’ incidents which
involved many of the emergency services and on occasions mutual aid
agreements.

Councillor M. Bateman sought assurance that the Health Service would be
able to cope in an emergency. In response, the Chief Executive said that testing
had shown that all of the emergency services worked well together but that it was
likely that non-critical health services would be suspended during an emergency.
The Leader of the Council referred to paragraph 3.06 where it was reported that
once the service was established, consideration would be given to the potential of
joint services with Police, Fire and Health.

Councillor R. Lloyd asked if there were any plans for the Emergency
Planning Officers to meet with Town and Community Councils. The Chief
Executive suggested that the Emergency Planning Officers could be invited to
attend Town and Community Council meetings if it was felt that there was a
need.

In response to a query from Councillor C.S. Carver on savings for
Flintshire County Council, the Chief Executive said that the proposals were
broadly cost neutral and added that it was not assumed that every collaboration
would save money for all parties involved. He added that Category one
responders included ambulances and that Category two responders would
include Welfare Services.

Councillor P. Shotton felt that the Committee should record its admiration
to the North Wales Fire & Rescue Service, Police and Royal Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (RSPCA) for their work in the rescue following
the recent flooding in St. Asaph.

RESOLVED:
(a) That the report be received;

(b)  That an annual report be submitted to the Committee on the new service
and a further information report being made at the point of transition; and

(c) That feedback following any major incidents be reported to Committee.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13(MONTH 9) AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2012/13 (QUARTER 3)

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 9)

The Head of Finance introduced a report to provide Members with the
most up to date Revenue Budget Monitoring information (Month 9) for the Council

Page 5



Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) in 2012/13 which was being
submitted to Cabinet on 19 March 2013.

The projected year end underspend of £0.856m on the Council Fund was
an increase in the underspend reported at Month 8. Appendix 1 showed a
summary of movement from Month 8 and reported that the majority of changes
were in Community Services. Two requests for carry forward were being
recommended to Cabinet for Legal & Democratic Services and ICT & Customer
Services. Appendix 7 provided details on the movements of unearmarked
reserves to leave a projected level of Contingency Reserve at 31 March 2013 as
£0.445m. The Head of Finance explained that this amount was in addition to the
Base Level of reserves of £5.564m and the amount of £0.770m approved by
Cabinet on 19 February 2013 for the impact of the provision for Mutual Municipal
Insurance scheme of arrangement. An underspend of £0.471m on the HRA was
also reported but there were delegated powers arrangements in place for it to be
spent on investment in the housing stock.

Councillor P.G. Heesom referred to the two entries in appendix 7 for
approvals made in 2011/12 and asked whether these had now been dispensed
with. In response the Head of Finance said that the £1.500m referred to in
appendix 7 had been ringfenced at the end of the last financial year and had
been the subject of a report to Cabinet in January 2013 which identified
allocations to a number of Invest to Save projects. Councillor Heesom
highlighted the risk of planning decisions which were the subject of appeal which
were reported as being costs for the appeal in relation to the Croes Atti site. He
said that he had been advised that the costs were £0.040m and not £0.020m as
reported and were due to the Council’s failure to determine the application. He
also paid tribute to the work of the Head of Housing and the commitment that had
been given following the result of the housing transfer ballot.

Councillor A. Woolley queried whether any of the underspend on the
Council Fund could be used to reinstate the swimming subsidy of £0.023m in
2013/14. The Leader of the Council explained that an element of the budget
underspend had already been included in the figures to achieve a balanced
budget for 2013/14. The Head of Finance advised that of the unearmarked
reserves, £0.297m had been approved by Council on 1 March 2013 for funding of
one-off costs in the 2013/14 budget proposals and said that it was important to
reiterate the difference between one-off costs and recurring costs such as the
swimming subsidy. In response to a question from Councillor M. Bateman on
whether the amount set aside for Single Status was adequate, the Chief
Executive felt that the reserve was sufficient to pay the one-off costs currently
costed.

Councillor P. Shotton welcomed the recent review of the changes on the
‘bedroom tax’ to exclude foster carers and those serving in the Armed Forces and
asked whether the ‘bedroom tax’ was having an effect on homelessness. The
Head of Finance explained that it was not yet in place but coming into effect from
1 April but would be monitored in the HRA. In response to a question from
Councillor G.H. Bateman on the problems with the performance of the gas
engines at the landfill sites, the Chief Executive explained that the amount of
£0.145m would remain static and that an amount was included in the budget to
meet it year on year.

Page 6



86.

Capital Programme 2012/13 (Quarter 3)

The Head of Finance introduced the report to provide Members with the
latest Capital Programme information for 2012/13 which would be submitted to
Cabinet on 19 March 2013.

The table set out how the programme had changed during 2012/13 for
both the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA). Detailed
cumulative information relating to each programme area was provided in
Appendix A and summarised in the table on page 108. Rollover requests from
2012/13 to 2013/14 of £3.657m were being recommended to Cabinet. Detailed
discussions had taken place with Directorates to ensure that the projects were
contractually committed as agreed by Cabinet, following input from Overview &
Scrutiny on Capital Programme Management; Appendix C provided further detail.
The financing resources were summarised in the report along with the Council
Fund Capital Receipts (cumulative) actual against estimate. The Head of
Finance reminded Members that all of the information in this report had been
factored into the starting position for the Capital Programme agreed at County
Council on 1 March 2013.

Councillor P.G. Heesom raised concern about the allocation of £0.025m
for Clwyd Theatr Cymru and asked how this could be justified. The Head of
Finance responded that it was an allocation within the capital programme for a
building which had to be maintained by Flintshire County Council as it was in the
ownership of the Council. It was a small allocation for essential works and was
not for investment in major capital expenditure. She added that it was possible to
capitalise revenue expenditure but the amount in question would not meet the
test for prudential borrowing. The Chief Executive explained that 60% of the core
revenue funding for the Theatr was provided by the Arts Council and 40% by
Flintshire County Council.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

QUARTER 3 SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS

The Chairman introduced a report to request that the Committee consider
the 2012/13 Quarter 3 service performance reports and note the progress made
against the Improvement Targets contained within the performance reports.

Finance

The Head of Finance gave a short presentation on the performance within
each of the service areas, outlining work which had been undertaken to improve
performance and areas where improvement was needed, as outlined within the
report.

Councillor P.G. Heesom commented on the Finance workstream of
Flintshire Futures and the need to align this with work to be undertaken on the
Medium Term Financial Plan. He also highlighted problems with being able to
access Lotus Notes and asked for an update on whether new software was to be

Page 7



purchased. The ICT Operational Services Manager responded that he was
aware of issues with Lotus Notes version 8 and that the continued use of
Microsoft software was being considered.

Councillor A. Woolley raised concern at the evidence from the recent
Universal Benefit pilot schemes held throughout the country where Housing
Benefit had been paid to the recipient instead of the landlord and the problems
that this had raised due to increases in rent arrears. He asked if anything could
be done to voice the concerns raised to endeavour to get the decision reversed.
The Head of Finance responded that the Head of Housing had spoken recently
on the risk which was a concern for the HRA and explained that payment of rent
to the tenant rather than the landlord was already in place for private tenants.
She gave assurance that the concerns had been, and would continue to be,
registered through professional and stakeholder groups.

Councillor A.P. Shotton, the Leader of the Council, said that the issues
around Welfare Reform had been raised at Group Leader's meetings and he
spoke of national lobbying through the Welsh Local Government Association on
exemptions to the ‘bedroom tax’ for Foster Carers and those serving in the
Armed Forces, which he welcomed. He was due to meet with lain Duncan-
Smith, the Work and Pensions Secretary, and assured Members that he would
raise the concerns of Members with him. He reiterated the concerns following
the results of pilot schemes which had been undertaken, particularly on Universal
Credit. He raised concern about social landlords who may experience difficulties
if they did not receive the rental payments that they were owed because they
were paid to the tenant. He commented on the work being undertaken with the
Flintshire Credit Union and the Discretionary Housing Payments which could be
available to tenants in the short term.

Legal and Democratic Services

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services gave a short presentation on
the performance within each of the service areas, outlining work which had been
undertaken to improve performance and areas where improvement was needed,
as outlined within each report.

Councillor C.S. Carver commented on problems that he had experienced
recently about receiving electoral registration updates. The Head of Legal and
Democratic Services advised that he had spoken to the Electoral Services
Manager who had advised him that the problem was due to issues with Citrix and
the software package required to produce the report. He explained that he would
highlight the issue again. Councillor Carver also referred to problems
experienced by a Member who regularly travelled by taxi and asked whether
checks were in place to ensure that the Council was not being overcharged. The
Head of Legal and Democratic Services said that he would ask Member Services
to look at the overall costs of taxi journeys undertaken by Members.

In response to a query from Councillor M. Reece on the changes from
Electoral Registration for each household to the requirement of each individual to
register for elections, the Head of Legal and Democratic Services said that
individual forms would be issued for each elector in the household. The Chief

Page 8



Executive said that this decision had been reached nationally but it was expected
that it would produce a lower elector registration rate for elections.

Councillor Heesom felt that a review of Overview and Scrutiny Committees
was required to ensure that their effectiveness. On the issue of the ‘Learning
Exchange Team’ (LET) he felt that two political groups had been omitted and he
hoped that this would be reviewed in due course as he felt that it was
discriminatory. The Chief Executive concurred that a review may be required and
questioned the future need for a Committee dedicated to housing. The Member
Engagement Manager said that nominations had been sought for the LET
following a recent meeting of the Democratic Services Committee.

ICT and Customer Services

The ICT Operational Services Manager gave a short presentation on the
performance within each of the service areas, outlining work which had been
undertaken to improve performance and areas where improvement was needed,
as outlined within each report.

Councillor Shotton, the Leader of the Council, commented on the Flintshire
Connects project and the funding of the scheme through the Invest to Save fund
and the further development of the project into other areas including Flint and
Connah’s Quay.

Councillor Carver asked for an update on the provision of electronic
devices to Members to view their agendas for meetings. The ICT Operational
Services Manager said that there was a business case and that the technology
provided for the Corporate Management Team could be replicated for Members.
The Leader of the Council said that the issue was raised at a recent Group
Leader’s meeting and would be discussed again at a future meeting. The Chief
Executive reminded Members that a decision would need to be made by all
Members but said that even though it would reduce the amount of papers
circulated it would not reduce the use of paper copies completely.

Councillor P. Shotton commented on the pilot scheme for a national e-
invoice scanning solution sponsored by the Welsh Government with Remploy
being the service provider. In response to a query from Councillor R. Lloyd the
Customer Services Team Leader provided further information on the
procurement and development of a Flintshire ‘app’ for customers to contact the
Council via a mobile device. She advised that it was hoped to be able to test the
‘app’ in the next six to eight weeks.

Human Resources and Organisational Development

The Chief Executive gave a short presentation on the performance within
each of the service areas, outlining work which had been undertaken to improve
performance and areas where improvement was needed, as outlined within each
report.

Councillor Carver raised concern about the costs of the Single Status

Agreement and said that he had been advised that implementation of the project
was expected between April and June 2013. The Chief Executive responded that

Page 9



87.

the costs were significant and that the Project Board would be discussing the
timeline at its next meeting. He explained that the effective date could be earlier
than the implementation date and added that Members would be updated when
information was available to share with them. Councillor Heesom spoke of the
importance of linking the Single Status Agreement with the Equal Pay Strategy
and asked for an early update on the scale of equal pay claims.

The Chairman referred to the increase in sickness absence levels across
all directorates which he felt was a concern. The Chief Executive said that there
had been a slight improvement in Corporate Services but concurred that some
other figures were disappointing in this quarter.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to consider the
Forward Work Programme of the Committee.

The Member Engagement Manager reminded Members of the Appraisals
Workshop that had been scheduled for 10am on Thursday, 28 March 2013. He
detailed the items for the next scheduled meeting of the Committee on 18 April
2013 and explained that during earlier discussions it had been agreed that the
Regional CCTV report and an update on the financial risks to the Council as a
result of Welfare Reform would also be submitted to that meeting. During a
further discussion, it was agreed that the Welfare Reform Update would be
submitted to the meeting scheduled for 13 June 2013.

Councillor A.l. Dunbar asked for an update for Members to allow them to
respond to questions that were being asked by residents on the effects of the
Welfare Reform changes; the Chief Executive confirmed that a written response
could be provided.

Councillor P.G. Heesom raised concern about the effects of equal pay
claims and Single Status. The Chief Executive explained that confidential
workshops would need to be held with Members to ensure that they were fully
aware of the outcomes prior to consideration at a future Full Council meeting.

The Chairman reminded Members that they could suggest items for future
meetings of the Committee if there were any specific issues that they wanted to
raise.

RESOLVED:
(a) That the report be received;

(b)  That the Regional CCTV report be considered by the Committee at its
meeting on the 18 April 2013;

Page 10



88.

(c) That a report on the financial risks to the Council as a result of Welfare
Reform be submitted to the Committee meeting scheduled for the 13 June
2013;

(d) That a written update be provided to Members on Welfare Reform.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was 1 member of the press and 1 member of the public in
attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 12.59 pm)

Chairman

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF ICT AND CUSTOMER SERVICES

SUBJECT: CUSTOMER SERVICES AS A FLINTSHIRE FUTURES
WORKSTREAM

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide an update on the Customer Services Workstream within
the Flintshire Futures Programme.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Council has developed the Flintshire Futures Programme as its
corporate programme for modernising and transforming the
organisation and to make best use of its resources and secure
efficiencies. Within this programme are a number of workstreams
Customer Service being one.

2.02 This report provides information on progress made on the various
projects within the Customer Services Workstream. All align with and
contribute to the implementation of the Council’'s Customer Services
Strategy which is monitored by this Committee.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Within the Customer Services Workstream we are ensuring that
whatever changes we make we will put our customers at the heart of
everything we do, in line with the Council’'s improvement priorities.
We are aiming to improve customer access, customer service
standards and customer engagement across the organisation.

3.02 Although improving the customer experience is our primary goal we
are at the same time planning to make efficiencies by encouraging
use of self service digital access and challenging our processes to
ensure we standardise, simplify and automate wherever possible.

3.03 Customer Access
The focus of the work to date is in improving customer access to
services and information. We recognise that we have to provide
choice in terms of how, when and where services are available and
although encouraging digital self service, we are also improving face
to face and telephone access.

Page 13



3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

13.10

Flintshire Connects is focussed on face to face customer service. Our
vision is “Delivering improved customer facing services to the
residents of Flintshire in partnership with others and through the
provision of accessible, modern and community based facilities.”

The central aim of the project is to improve customer service by
providing more “joined up” and improved access to Council and other
public-facing services in local towns, and at the same time enabling
flexible working and decentralisation of Council staff and services to
locations which best meet our customers’ needs. Efficiencies will be
driven by developing generic job roles for customer facing staff,
reducing journey times (and cost), and sharing office premises costs
with partner agencies.

Whilst the primary focus of the project is about improving the
customer experience it will also play a key role in regenerating our
town centres. Flintshire Connects offers a clear opportunity to use a
Council programme to act as both a catalyst for, and support to
regenerating our town centres. Flintshire Connects centres providing
access to Council and other partner services will be a new presence
within our towns, they will create both a demand for space and
additional new footfall.

We opened our first Flintshire Connects facility in Holywell on
30" November, 2012. It has been well received and we have seen a
gradual increase in customers using the facility, around 400 per week.
North Wales Police have relocated to Connects from Holywell police
station, Job Centre Plus have a regular presence there, Communities
First are based at the facility and Deeside College are using meeting
room space for community learning.

We are now planning new Connects facilities at Flint, Connah’s Quay
and Buckley following the County Council decision in March to extend
the network. We have secured £700k of Invest to Save Funding from
Welsh Government, and Job Centre Plus have confirmed that they will
be operating permanently from the Flint Connects Centre with
discussions on-going with other partners for all 3 facilities.

The Contact Centre opened in March 2012. We had some initial
problems mainly due to underestimating the volume of calls due to the
operational changes made to waste collection. \We are now seeing
high performance with targets for call handling being consistently met.
The contact centre received on average 800 calls per day over the
recent severe weather period. In addition to Streetscene we have
recently implemented contact centre facilities for Housing Repairs,
Revenues & Benefits and Leisure.

Another project within the Customer Services Workstream is Channel
Shift, which is about encouraging customers to use digital self service

Page 14



13.11

13.12

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

facilities to access services and information. The development of the
new Council Website has commenced with a target date for
implementation of September, 2013 and the Flintshire “App” for
mobile devices will be launched in July, 2013.

Customer Service Standards

Although the focus for the project team has been very much around
improving Customer Access there are other complementary pieces of
work also in progress. A review of the Council's customer care
standards is underway. New standards and targets will be identified
and incorporate the new access channels particularly digital self
service which do not currently feature in our customer care standards.

Customer Engagement

The Customer Engagement Project Team has recently been
established.  Currently an exercise is underway to identify all
consultation and engagement activities across the Council. We are
aware of good practice particularly in Community Services and want
to ensure that if appropriate this can be replicated across other
service areas. The project will also look at communication channels
which will include social media.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to note this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None arising directly from this report.

Page 15



11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None arising directly from this report.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Chris Guest
Telephone: 01352 702800
Email: chris.guest@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 16



Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: FAIR DEBT POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To see input from Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on the draft Fair Debt Policy prior to its consideration by
Cabinet.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Council has already developed a Corporate Debt Policy which
establishes standard procedures for the collection of debt. The
introduction of a Fair Debt Policy is separate to this and is primarily a
customer focused policy to assist those in financial difficulty owing
single and multiple debts to the Council.

2.02 The purpose of this Fair Debt Policy is to establish guidelines on how
the Council will recover debts owed. It sets out the framework for a
consistent and sensitive approach to the recovery of debts and
importantly, it aims to offer customers who experience payment
difficulties with practical payment solutions which take account of the
customer’s personal circumstances.

2.03 The policy is about putting in place a co-ordinated and consistent
approach to collection of debt and moving towards a joined-up
approach to assist those in financial difficulty owing single and
especially multiple debts to the Council.

2.04 The policy is certainly not a customer charter designed to allow
customers to avoid their payment responsibilities but importantly it
seeks to strike the right balance between meeting payment obligations
and recognising that many customers find it difficult to meet their
payments.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The introduction of this policy will ensure that the Council continues to
fulfil its responsibility to maximise the collection of council tax, rents,
corporate debt and housing benefit overpayments.

Page 17



3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

The policy also needs to be considered as part of a wider effort to
combat poverty, address the risks arising from welfare reform and
provide a customer focused approach which is sensitive to the needs
of those who find it increasingly difficult to pay.

The introduction of this policy will have a number of benefits for the
Council and its customers. It will work towards :

o Allowing for a more joined up and co-ordinated approach to the
collection of multiple debts owed to the Council,

o Encouraging early contact from customers when they are first
faced with financial difficulties to avoid debts building up

o Taking positive action to prevent arrears from occurring in the
first place, maximising income and entitlements at an early
stage.

o Providing a commitment to work with customers and/or their
representatives, identifying priority debts and setting out
reasonable and realistic payment levels, especially in relation
to multiple debts, ensuring that payment arrangements reflect
the ability to pay as well as the overall level of debt owed.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny considers the Fair
Debt Policy as set out in the Appendix and provides any input and
comment to Cabinet on 23" April 2013.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The policy will ensure that recovery action will be taken against
deliberate non-payers or those who delay payment without genuine
reason whilst always working to identify and assist those who
genuinely can’t pay.

The Fair Debt policy is designed to ensure that people are not
exposed to undue financial hardship as a result of the Council's
Corporate Debt Policy and the Fair Debt Policy sets out actions to
minimise any hardship.

Where people have fallen or are likely to fall into arrears, the policy
will provide a commitment to work with them, and their
representatives, to set reasonable and realistic payment levels that
they can maintain, ensuring that payment arrangements reflect the
ability to pay as well as the level of debt owed.

Page 18



6.04

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

8.02

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

The policy is also about putting in place a co-ordinated and consistent
approach to collecting single and multiple debts owed to the Council.
When either the Council or our advice agency partners become aware
of multiple debt cases, Council officers will actively co-operate with
each other to agree a single payment plan and to ensure all
repayments are sustainable.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The Policy is supported by guiding principles to ensure that in the
wider public interest recovery action is proportionate, consistent and
transparent.

The Policy aims to allow for a balance to be struck between the
potential loss of income due to the Council and the costs of
compliance, against the need to maximise income. When recovery is
taken the policy will ensure that a consistent approach is adopted,
recognising the need to treat everyone as individuals but with very
differing circumstances. Transparency is vital in maintaining public
confidence in the Council and the policy will provide members of the
public with better awareness of what is expected of them in relation to
their payment obligations. Importantly, the policy will also promote
early contact with the Council to address payment difficulties.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Lead Officers across the Corporate Services team and Community
Services Directorate, working alongside representatives of the
Flintshire CAB, have sought to introduce recognised best practice into
the policy.

The Advice Management Board has also been consulted about the
introduction and content of this policy.

The introduction of this policy has also referred to Corporate Resource
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 19



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 The Fair Debt Policy appears in the Appendix to this report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652

Email: david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 20



Fair Debt Collection Policy

CYIEGOR‘ E -
-Sz.r l-,/ ) f.llnt
Fllntshlre



Fair Debt Collection Policy

1. Background & Introduction

1.1

1.2

The purpose of this Fair Debt Policy is to establish guidelines on how
the Council will recover debts owed. It sets out the framework for a
consistent and sensitive approach to the recovery of debts and
importantly, it aims to offer customers who experience payment
difficulties with practical payment solutions which take account of the
customer’s personal circumstances.

The Council has already developed a Corporate Debt Policy which
establishes standard procedures for the collection of debt. The Fair
Debt Policy is separate to this and is primarily a customer focused
policy to assist those in financial difficulty owing single and multiple
debts to the Council.

2. Principles of the policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Flintshire County Council is committed to collecting all of the income
which is due to the authority as this is an important income stream to
support the delivery of services to residents.

It is equally as important for the Council to recognise that customers
will have times and circumstances in their lives where they will be
unable to meet all of their financial commitments and need the Council
to work with them or their representatives resolve the payment
difficulties.

The Policy is about putting in place a co-ordinated and consistent
approach to collecting multiple debts owed to the Council ensuring that
where a customer makes contact to discuss payment difficulties their
circumstances will be considered fairly and objectively with a view to
agreeing a reasonable payment arrangement, minimising recovery
action and working to avoid additional costs to the customer.

The Policy also recognises that collection of debt should be fair to
everyone, especially those who pay on time, but that some people may
deliberately avoid their payment obligations by delaying payment or
choosing not to make payment at all. In all such cases, proportionate
measures will be deployed to develop a culture of payment while
always encouraging those in need of help to get in touch with the
Council at an early stage.

The Policy commits the Council to operating in a fair and equitable way

when recovering debts, ensuring that any action taken to recover
unpaid debts is always proportionate, consistent and transparent.

Page 22



2.6 In summary, the Policy should ensure that each customer is treated
fairly, as an individual and with compassion in cases where genuine
financial hardship is experienced

3. Types of debt covered by the policy

3.1 The Fair Debt policy covers council tax, council rent, housing benefit
overpayments, personal and non commercial debts administered by
the Corporate Debt collection service.

4. Communication and contact with the council

4.1 Advice and information will always be made available to customers at
every stage of the process. The Council will make clear what action is
being taken and why.

4.2  The Council will also explain to customers what they should do if they
are unable to pay and importantly where they can get independent
money advice and support for wider debt problems.

4.3 Escalation procedures will always give a clear indication to the
customer of the next stage in the Councils recovery process including
any additional costs to be incurred on the debt.

4.4 In cases of non payment, the Council will let know customers in writing
promptly and invite them to make contact with the Council at an early
stage of the recovery process with a view to making a payment
agreement if they are experiencing financial difficulty.

5. Benefits, discounts and exemptions and money advice

5.1  The Council will seek to inform customers of their entittement to means
tested and non means tested benefits, discounts and exemptions to
ensure entitlements are correct and that no one pays more than they
are legally required to.

5.2 The Council will provide easily accessible information about benefits,
discounts, exemptions and independent money advice and support
through a range of communication channels, including public leaflets,
inserts with bills, recovery documents and public information via the
Councils website.

5.3 The Council will actively promote and signpost the services of
independent money advice and support agencies and seek to work in
partnership with local advice agencies.

5.4  The Council will work towards providing Advice Agencies will a single
point of contact relevant to each service area so that issues can be
taken up and resolved quickly and to better manage multiple debt
cases.

Page 23



6. Responsibilities of customers

6.1

The Council expects customers that owe sums to the Council to
comply with all legal obligations. The Council is committed to working
with customers as set out in this policy and it is the Council's
expectations that those owing sums to the Council will contribute to this
process by abiding by the following guidance:

o Pay amounts promptly to ensure receipt by the Council by the
payment due date

o Follow instructions provided regarding the making of payments to
ensure payments are credited correctly

o Inform the Council promptly of any change in circumstances that
may affect the amount to be paid or the ability to pay

o Notify the Council promptly if there is a change of address

o Contact the Council promptly if there are payment difficulties

o Respect the Council, it's employees and its agents and respond to
them courteously

7. Arrangements for Repayment of Debts

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Throughout the debt recovery process, the Council will focus on the
need for personal contact with the customer.

If a customer is unable to a pay debt owed to the Council they should
in the first instance contact the Council to discuss their position.

Once the customer has contacted the Council about difficulties they are
having with making the payments the Council will seek to establish a
repayment plan considered:

o the principles of the fair debt policy

o the customers ability to pay relative to the outstanding balances and
the cost of recovery

o the need to repay the debt within a reasonable timescale

o standard procedures will be followed having due regard to the
customer’s income and expenditure — when undertaking a detailed
assessment of a customer’s financial situation an income and
expenditure form replicating the form used by the Citizens Advice
Bureau. The Council will work towards measuring expenditure
against the Bureau’s Common Financial Statement to ensure a
consistent approach is taken to assessing a customer’s financial
circumstances.

The Council will try to resolve all queries and make a payment
arrangement during the first contact, especially in the case of single
debts owed to the Council. Payment arrangements will be confirmed
setting out the payment obligations that the customer is expected to
keep to.

Page 24



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

The Council will seek as much information as possible about the
customer’s circumstances as considered necessary in order to make
the best assessment of their ability to pay and to determine a realistic
payment arrangement. More information is likely to be required where
an initial assessment indicates the customer is unable to pay the debt
over a short period of time and where the debt will not be repaid in full
by the end of the financial year in which pay is due.

Where a customer refuses to divulge any information that is considered
essential to assessing their ability to pay then no payment agreement
will be entered into.

Customers and/or advice agencies working on behalf of the customer
will be encouraged to notify the Council of multiple debts and agree a
co-ordinated payment plan covering all debts owed to the Council. In
turn, Council Officers will actively co-operate with each other to agree a
single payment plan and to ensure all repayments are sustainable.

Whilst the benefits of agreeing a co-ordinated payment plan will be
explained to the customer, the Council recognises that the customer
has the right to deal with debts separately if they so choose.

Payment plans for multiple debts owed to the Council will be designed
to allow customers to initially make payment towards priority debts
owed to the Council (Rent payments and Council Tax) and then
towards all other debts owed to the Council. In appropriate cases,
where have wider debt problems, the Council will signpost customers
to external advice agencies.

For customers entering into single payment agreements for multiple
debts owed to the Council, except where repayments are established
through court orders or agreed rates of deduction from benefits,
repayments will normally be distributed in direct proportion to the
priority and then lower debts outstanding to each service area.

Where the level of repayment required cannot be met the Council will
work towards the use of an income and expenditure form officer using
a common financial statement to access the financial means of the
customer.

If no contact is made then the Council will contact the customer in
writing promptly to set out the consequence of not paying the debt. The
Council will stress the importance of the customer contacting the
Council at an early stage to discuss the issue

Page 25



8. Late or missed payments

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

If for what ever reason the customer is unable to make a payment they
will be encouraged to contact the Council prior to the payment failing to
be made.

Where a payment arrangement has been agreed but payment is not
received in accordance with the agreement, before further action to
recover the unpaid debt is considered, the Council will write to the
customer promptly to request payment of the sums due and explaining
the consequences of failing to pay.

The Council will also encourage the customer to make further contact
to discuss any payment difficulties or change in circumstances. A
reasonable period of time will be provided to the customer to bring the
payment agreement up to date or to make further contact with the
Council.

Where a customer fails to bring a payment agreement up to date or
persistently fails to keep to a payment agreement the Council will
consider taking further steps to recover the unpaid debt and a further
payment agreement will not normally be considered unless the
customer’s circumstances have significantly changed.

9. Enforcement and bailiff action

9.1

9.2

9.2

9.3

9.4

The Council will use Debt Recovery Services to recover debts where
customers have persistently failed to pay.

The use of bailiffs to recover debt will only be considered by the
Council when all reasonable attempts to recover the debt have been
exhausted. In all such cases, the Council will use only reputable and
appropriately appointed organisations that have been contracted to the
Council through a full procurement exercise.

All bailiff organisations will comply with the Council’'s agreed Code of
Practice as set out by the Council.

The Council and the bailiff firm will ensure that all bailiffs and have an
appropriate knowledge and understanding of all relevant legislation,
case law and powers, and at all times act in accordance with them.

Bailiffs and employees, contractors and agents of the bailiff firm must
be aware that they represent the Council in their dealings with
customers. They will always act in a responsible, professional and
courteous manner and be aware that their behaviour, appearance and
attitude have a great influence on the success of the debt recovery
process.

Page 26



9.5 The bailiff will at all times use their professional judgement to refer
back to the Council if he considers that, due to the personal
circumstances of the debtor, it would be inappropriate to proceed to
levy distress.

10. Monitoring and Review

10.1 It is proposed that a Fair Debt working group will be established to
monitor the effectiveness of this policy. The group will consist of senior
managers within the Council responsible for debt recovery and debt
recovery specialists from the Citizens Advice Bureau.

10.2 The group will meet initially on a quarterly basis to discuss the

implementation of the policy and thereafter to review and update the
policy as and when the need arises.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13 MONTH
10

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

2.00

2.01

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

To provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13
(Month 10) report.

BACKGROUND

The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10) report will be
presented to Cabinet on 23™ April 2013. A copy of the report is
attached as Appendix A to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

Page 29



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

(A) Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10) report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 30



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 23 APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: 1R_OE)VENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13 (MONTH

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide members with the most up to date revenue budget monitoring
information (Month 10) for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2012/13.

1.02 INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2
Paragraph 3.01
Paragraph 3.06
Paragraph 3.07
Section 4
Section 5
Section 6
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5
Appendix 6
Appendix 7
Appendix 8

Executive Summary

Council Fund Summary Table

Risks and Assumptions

Carry Forward Request

Non Standard Inflation / Central Contingencies
Unearmarked Reserves

Housing Revenue Account

Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 9
Community Services -Variances Summary
Environment -Variances Summary

Lifelong Learning -Variances Summary

Corporate Services -Variances Summary

Central & Corporate Finance -Variances Summary
Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Housing Revenue Account -Variances Summary

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01 Members are requested to note the projected year end position as estimated at
Month 10 which is :

e Council Fund - Net underspend of £1.305m (£0.856m underspend at

Month 9)

¢ Housing Revenue Account - Net underspend of £0.491m (£0.471m
underspend at Month 9)

Page 31



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

CONSIDERATIONS

The table below shows a projected in-year underspend of £1.305m :-

Original | Revised| In-Year Over/ . .
Non Ring-fenced Ring-fenced
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Budget | Budget | (Under) spend g 9
AND INCOME
Month 9 [Month 10] Month 9 |Month 10| Month 9 | Month 10
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Directorates
Community Services 58.437] 58.469| (1.382)| (1.813)] (0.592)| (0.947)] (0.790)| (0.866)
Environment 31.794] 32.487| (0.052)] (0.059)] (0.052)| (0.059)
Lifelong Learning 109.219] 109.935 0.674 0.724 1.216) 1.240] (0.542)| (0.516)
Corporate Services 17.469] 17.649 0.251 0.180, 0.251 0.180, - -
Total Directorates 216.919| 218.540 (0.509)] (0.968) 0.823 0.414] (1.332)| (1.382)
gi’;:i?"d Corporate 25759 24.138] (0.347)| (0.337)| (0.347)| (0.337)
Total 242.678| 242.678 (0.856)] (1.305) 0.476 0.077] (1.332)] (1.382)

It is important to note that the projection above does not take into account any
additional costs associated with the extreme weather conditions at the end of
March, the impact of which will be reported in future monitoring reports.

The Original Budget column reflects the budget approved by Council on the
1% March 2012. The Revised Budget column reflects in-year virements which
have been approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules.

The significant in-year projected variances to date are detailed in Appendices 2
- 6 (Council Fund) and Appendix 8 (HRA), and in addition to giving the reasons
for the variances, the actions required to address each variance is provided.
The significant changes for the Council Fund from Month 9 are detailed in
Appendix 1.

In line with the management commitment to reduce the projected in-year
overspend there has been progressive improvement in the projected outturn
position since a projected overspend of £1.053m was reported to Cabinet on
18th September 2012 within the Month 3 budget monitoring report.

RISKS / ASSUMPTIONS

In addition to the effects of the extreme weather at the end of March (see 3.02)
the in-year over / (under) spends shown in the table at paragraph 3.01 reflect
the following risks and assumptions :-

1. Community Services

e Social Services for Adults
o  Occupational Therapy service - increased demand
e Social Services for Children
o  Out of county placements - demand led with volatility influenced

Page 32



by numbers and high values of individual placements, however
current procurement practices and existing facilities within the
county are positively influencing costs and numbers of placements
respectively

o  Family Placement - increases in foster care places / court orders
for Residence and Specific Guardianship

e Housing Services

o  Homelessness - projected high demand influenced by current

economic climate and recent welfare reform

Environment

¢ Planning
o A number of planning decisions are the subject of ongoing
appeals which may have the potential for costs to be awarded
against the Council

Lifelong Learning

e Facilities
o  Catering - overspend projected but possible mitigation from
project plans following APSE review
e Development & Resources
o  Free school meals & remissions - influenced by economic factors
¢ Ringfenced budgets
o  Out of county placements - demand led with volatility influenced
by numbers and high values of individual placements, however
current procurement practices and existing facilities within the
county are positively influencing costs and numbers of placements
respectively
e Leisure Income
o Income levels for the new leisure facilities are being monitored
carefully on a weekly basis. Any variation, either positive or
negative, could have a material effect on the projected outturn.

Corporate Services

e Welfare Reform

o The Welfare Reform changes have the ability to influence a
number of budgets across the Council and this is being kept under
review

¢ Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd (MMI)

o A contingent liability was recorded in the 2011/12 Statement of
Accounts which recognised a possible future requirement to
provide for Flintshire County Council’s share of liability relating to
a scheme of arrangement set up in 1992 - Provision has been
made in the 2012/13 accounts for £0.770m based on an
estimated level of future liability as required by the Accounts and
Audit regulations, as approved by Cabinet on 19" February 2013

Page 33



3.07

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

REQUEST FOR CARRY FORWARD - CORPORATE SERVICES

ICT & Customer Services - An underspend of £0.011m in respect of the Capita
One project has been identified. This is a regional project for North Wales
Authorities, led by FCC for which agreed contributions have been received
from our partner Authorities. We are therefore committed to delivering the
specified level of service. Capacity issues have led to project delays and
therefore the £0.011m balance remaining in the account will be required in
2013/14 to allow the project to continue. It is requested therefore to carry
forward the sum of £0.011m to 2013/14.

NON STANDARD INFLATION

Included in the budget are amounts for non-standard inflation. These budgets
are being monitored closely and the current position for each element is
outlined below:

o £0.078m in respect of Energy for Street Lighting - this budget is being
held centrally and at this stage is expected to be allocated in full.

o £0.300m in respect of Energy - most of this budget has previously been
allocated to services and the remaining £0.060m is currently being
reviewed and will be reported in future monitoring reports.

o £0.196m in respect of Fuel - it has been confirmed that the full amount
will be required and the allocation of this budget is reflected in this
report.

o £0.133m in respect of Food - it has been confirmed that the full amount
will be required and the allocation of this budget is reflected in this
report.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2011/12 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 10" July showed
unearmarked reserves at 31% March 2012 (above the base level of £5.476m)
of £0.992m, after taking into account commitments in 2012/13 :

e Use of £0.973m to meet one-off / time limited costs

¢ Ringfencing of £1.500m to support Organisational Change costs

Appendix 7 details the movements to date on unearmarked reserves and the
level of contingency sum available. As a result of the movements the current
projected level of the contingency reserve at the end of March 2013 is an
amount of £0.894m.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 21° February 2012, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2012/13 of £26.671m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £0.867m, which at 3.25 % of total expenditure satisfies the prudent
approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3 %.

Page 34



6.02

6.03

6.04

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

The 2011/12 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 10" July 2012 showed a
closing balance at the end of 2011/12 of £1.857m, which was £0.753m more
than when the 2012/13 budget was set. This had the effect of increasing the
closing balance for 2011/12 by the same amount.

There is an overall projected underspend of £0.491m and a projected closing
balance at Month 10 of £1.346m, which at 4.9 % of total expenditure satisfies
the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3 %.

Appendix 8 details the reasons for significant variances occurring to date and
the actions planned to deal with them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to :-
a) Note the overall report

b) Note the Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2013 (paragraph
5.02)

c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account (paragraph 6.03)

d) Approve the request for carry forward of underspend to 2013/14 as detailed
within paragraph 3.07

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are as set out in Sections 3.00 - 6.00 of the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Page 35



13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 9 - Appendix 1
Council Fund Variances - Appendices 2 - 6

Council Fund - Movements on unearmarked reserves - Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances - Appendix 8

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: (01352) 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 36



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2012/13

onvcon . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
P i ¥ Fflint
Flintshire Budget Monitoring (Month 10)

COLMTY COUNCIL

Summary of Movement from Month 9

Month 9

Out of County Ringfenced Budget
Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Executive Report

Month 10

Out of County Ringfenced Budget
Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Community Services
e |earning Disability (Ringfenced Budgets) - the movement from month 9 reflects the
projected costs of current care packages.

e Professional Support (Children Services) - the main movement from month 9 is due to
a reduced projection relating to leaving care maintenance payments and grants
(-£0.051m) to individuals as well as a reduction in projected pay cost (-£0.030m) due
to a number of changes including two new vacancies, the delayed filling of two other
vacancies, an extended secondment and revised projections for three staff on long
term sick leave. The balance is made up of a number of smaller variances.

e Support Services (Mental Health Service) - the movement from month 9 is due to a
reduced projection for Support Worker pay and travel costs (-£0.026m) and additional
income (-£0.013m) relating to additional funding secured for a post. The balance
(-£0.021m) is made up of a number of smaller movements.

e Resources and Regulated Services (Disability Services) - the movement from month 9
is mainly due to an increased income projection (-£0.105m). The balance is made up
of a number of other variances.

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Page 37

Appendix 1

£m £m
(1.327)
0.818
(0.347)
(0.856)
(1.318)
0.350
(0.337)
(1.305)
(0.449)
(0.056)
(0.079)
(0.060)
(0.111)
(0.125)
(0.431)



Environment

Minor changes of less than £25k

Lifelong Learning

Out of County Pooled Budget - the movement since month 9 of £0.026m is mainly due to 2 new
placements and some minor changes between estimated costs and actual expenses.

Leisure - An increased pressure of £0.030m relates to Deeside Ice Rink income. £0.010m
relates to income on Toning and £0.035m relates to other minor pressures on income budgets
across centres. The remainder of the pressure relates to increased expenditure (£0.049 on
repairs and maintenance, £0.009m on purchases, £0.003m on Water, £0.004m on security
services, £0.005m on alarm security systems and the balance of £0.034m relates mostly to
increased employee costs).

Development & Resources - There has been a decrease in the Pupil Benefits projection (-
£0.030m) relating to Free School Meals as meal numbers have been lower than anticipated. A
saving on the Mobile Classrooms budget has also been identified (-£0.114m). Other minor
variances across Development & Resources equate to (-£0.009m)

Libraries, Culture & Heritage -
Minor Variances

Corporate Services

Legal and Democratic Services - reduction in legal fees (-£0.020m), other minor
variances £0.006m.

HR and Organisational Development - additional vacancy savings (-£0.029m), minor
variances £0.012m.

ICT and Customer Services - increased pressure on Support Services costs £0.029m,
reduction in additional registrars income (£0.010), other minor variances (-£0.005m).

Finance - additional income - Council Tax Reduction Scheme Transition Grant
(-£0.112m), other minor variances £0.038m.

Central and Corporate

Minor changes of less than £25k

Total changes

Page 38

Appendix 1

(0.007)
(0.007)
0.026
0.179
(0.153)
(0.002)
0.050
(0.014)
(0.017)
0.034
(0.074)
(0.071)
0.010
0.010
(0.449)



6€ abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service . Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Resources and 6.187 5.540 (0.647) (0.648)|Extra Care projected in year underspend |The underspend against Extra

Regulated
Services (Intake
and Reablement)

on new scheme (£0.200m) due to
timeframe for completion.

In-house Domiciliary Care projected
underspend of £0.346m due to reduced
pay costs from changes to service
delivery and greater use of reablement
and independent sector care providers.
The increase (£0.011m) from month 9 is
mainly due to a reduction in projected
income (£0.010m).

Of the additional variance a projected
underspend of £0.167m, an increase of
£0.012m from month 9, relates to work
which is yet to be undertaken to realign
the budgets following the transport
review, the outcome of which has been
received and is being worked upon, and
£0.055m to vacancies within Day
Services being a small increase (£0.005)
from month 9. This is offset by a projected
overspend within Professional Support
(£0.137m), reduced from month 9
(£0.002m), which will be addressed as
part of TSSA realignment.

Care is one-off and non
recurring and has arisen due to
delays in building works
encountered by our partner.
Keep under review pending
completion of Transforming
Social Services for Adults
(TSSA) programme and
realign budgets as appropriate.




0t abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service . Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Reablement 0.370 0.264 (0.106) (0.102)|Pay costs being suppressed due to the  |Keep under review pending

Service (Intake
and Reablement)

use of Homecare staff, vacant post and
part year appointments (£0.070m)
together with additional Health income
(£0.029m) offset by various small
overspends.

completion of Transforming
Social Services for Adults
(TSSA) programme.




Tt obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

(Localities)

Physical Disability Services

> Purchased Home Care - projected to
overspend by £0.113m due to the impact
of various care packages.

> Purchased Residential Care is
projected to underspend by £0.307m
which is a reduction (£0.038m) to the
underspend reported in month 9 mostly
due to an additional comittment
(£0.028m) previously included within
Disability Services.

> Minor Adaptations - projected to
overspend by £0.102m reflecting the
continuing demand within the service.
Older People Services

> Purchased Day Care is projecting to
underspend by £0.101m due to a change
in emphasis in service delivery.

> Reablement Service is projecting an
overspend of £0.075m due to changes in
service delivery from TSSA.

>Purchased Home Care is projecting an
overspend of £0.159m reflecting current
care packages.

>Purchased Residential Care is
projecting an underspend of £0.026m

Revised | Projected Ml
Service . Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Locality Teams 16.489 16.429 (0.060) (0.054)| The significant variances lie within: Keep under review pending

completion of Transforming
Social Services for Adults
(TSSA) programme. Following
phase 1 of TSSA and during
the detailed reorganisation of
services, it has been decided
that most of the PDSI elements
included as part of the locality
team budgets at the early
stages of TSSA will form a
separate line under the
Disability Services Heading,
with only the Occupational
Therapy service remaining as
part of the locality teams. This
will undertaken for 2013/14.

A particular difficulty projecting
outturns within this service this
year is quantifying the impact
of the changes in service
delivery introduced with TSSA
the impact of which will be
reflected in 13/14.




2 obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service . Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Resources and 12.948 12.856 (0.092) 0.019|Independent Sector Purchasing is

Regulated
Services
(Disability
Services)

projected to underspend (£0.198m) an
increase of £0.093m from the position at
month 9. This is the net impact of a
number of changes of which the most
significant is an increase to the projected
income of £0.105m.




¢t obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service . Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Support Services 1.931 1.814 (0.117) (0.057)| The projected underspend comprise of

(Mental Health)

the following significant variances:

> Residential and Domiciliary Care
Service: projected underspend of
£0.111m, reflecting current care
packages.

> |ntensive Support Team: projected
underspend of £0.022m being mostly
underspends on pay (£0.032m) due to
temporary secondments and maternity
leave offset by the cost of backdated
business rates (£0.013m) which were
charged following a reassessment.

> Occupation and Employment: projected
underspend of £0.021m which has moved
from an overspend (£0.012m) reported at
month 9 due to a review of anticipated
support worker pay and associated
costs..

> Professional Support: a projected
overspend of £0.024m, a reduction of
£0.021m from month 9 due to additional
grant funding (£0.013m) and changes in
projected costs and income for Health
funded posts (£0.008m).




17 obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Ringfenced 0.301 0.182 (0.119) (0.123)|Reflects current care packages for
Budgets (Mental 2012/13. _ _
Health) Keep under review - potential
volatility due to changes in
client numbers and demands
at short notice from prison or
courts. The possibility of re-
Ringfenced 0.466 0.584 0.118 0.174|This reflects the full year impact of a new m(g)nslg?v:tnc:cig:;:ke)tetenen the
Budgets service user that commenced during considered and dismissed for
(Learning December 2011 together with some other now as there are early
Disability) changes to care packages. The reduction indications of additional Mental
of £0.057m reported in month 9 is mainly Health clients although at this
due to reduced projections for purchased stage potential costs or start
residential (£0.028m) and day care dates are unknown
(£0.024m) based on revised information '
on care packages.
Good Health 0.980 1.119 0.139 0.130| The majority of the overspend (£0.104m) [Not recurring.
(Development & is mainly due to one-off redundancy
Resources) related costs for two staff falling on the

service following a restructure. As these
redundancies are due to the cessation of
grant funding (Joint Working Special
Grant), and therefore not generating an
ongoing efficiency, the costs are met
within the Service. The increase from
month 9 is due to the costs of additional
works commissioned from the voluntary
sector.

6



G obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Business 1.274 1.198 (0.076) (0.073)|This service now includes the Financial
Systems Assessments Team, previously included
(Development & within Commissioning, who are
Resources) underspending (£0.045m) due to vacant
posts. The balance of the underspend is
mostly on pay and is due to vacant posts.
Family 1.832 2157 0.325 0.318|The overspend is mainly as a result of an |A review of the Family
Placement increase in the number of foster care Placement Team has
(Children’s placements within the service. Itis also |commenced the outcome of
Services) due to the increasing number of court which will inform future
orders for Residence and Special planning and possible
Guardianship orders which invariably efficiencies.
attract an ongoing allowance for the
carers.
Other Residential 0.526 0.461 (0.065) (0.055)| The projected underspend relates to the |Keep under review due to the
(Children opening of Arosfa being later than potential for additional costs
Services) anticipated. The increase (£0.010m) to relating to transport charges.
the underspend projected at month 9 is
due to the final costs for the
refurbishment works at Arosfa being less
than anticipated.
Grants (Children 0.115 0.067 (0.048) (0.046)| The projected underspend relates mostly

Services)

to an underspend (£0.051m) within third
party payments.




9t abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected VELETIEE
Service . Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Professional 5.374 5.534 0.160 0.239|Comprises Fieldwork, Resources, Keep under review. The Head

Support
(Children's
Services)

Children's Integrated Disability Service
(CIDS) and General. Fieldwork is
overspending (£0.299m) due to the
Children and Young Adolescent Support
team (£0.271m) - client payments
(£0.163m) reduced (£0.056m) from month
9, staff pay costs (£0.094m); client
payments includes the costs for two high
cost individuals (£0.120m) and is demand
led. Resources is underspending
(£0.041m) due to staff costs within Family
Placement Team (£0.035m); other under
and overs spends within the service offset
each other. CIDS overspend (£0.051m)
mainly due to increased use of direct
payments leading to an overspend
(£0.092m) offset by underspends on staff
(£0.025m) and transfer payments
(£0.010m). General is projected to
underspend (£0.148m) due to legal/court
costs (£0.022m), transport costs
(£0.021m), pay costs remain on budget;
Children First underspend (£0.081m) and
Corporate Parenting (£0.019m).

of Service (Children) has
instigated a review into the
specifics around these two
service users.

Due to the overspend within
Children Services spending is
kept to a minimum where
possible.




)t abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Out of County 3.711 2.909 (0.802) (0.785)|Costs reflect existing placements up until | The focus of high cost
Pooled Budget March 2013. This reflects known placements is now a North
(Children’s reductions in payments to providers Wales project and will
Services) following re-negotiation of contracts. The |continued to be reviewed. The
movement since month 9 reflect one in house project requires sign
placement ended (£0.013m) and other off by the two directors at the
changes reflecting changed outturn next meeting.
projections that cancel each other out.
The impact of these changes
on the Children Services
Fostering and Leaving Care
budgets has not yet been
quantified. Further details are
awaited.
Ring-fenced 0.377 0.314| (0.083)|  (0.056)|This reflects current projection of the Keep under review. One off
Budget (Housing anticipated demand on the service this ~ |and non recurring due to
Services) financial year. anticipated rise in
presentations in 13/14 due to
Welfare Reform impact and
projections that the full budget
Homelessness 0.488 0.389 (0.099) (0.081)|Review of expected spend undertaken will be required for further
(Housing and revised in line with trend. temporary accomodation units
Services) in the future.
Housing Support 0.193 0.133 (0.060) (0.061)|Salaries reviewed to take into account
Services breaks in employment and posts not
(Housing being filled in 2012/13.
Services)




8 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected Ml
Service Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Resident 1.236 1.110 (0.126) (0.127)|Budget based on restructure. Salaries Restructure approval required.
Wardens carry vacancies for the new structure yet
(Housing to be implemented.
Services)
Other variances 3.671 3.596 (0.075) 0.006(Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
(aggregate) expected to be recurrent.
Total : 58.469 56.656 (1.813) (1.382)

10



61 obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

ENVIRONMENT

APPENDIX 3

Service

Revised
Budget
(Em)

Projected
Outturn
(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Period 9
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Industrial Units

(1.479)

(1.410)

0.069

0.082

Shortfall of Industrial Unit Rental Income,
due in the main to Gaz de France
decommisioning the Shotton Power Station
site. Income shortfalls are partly mitigated
by savings in vacant posts at Deeside
Enterprise Centre.

Keep Unit rental income
closely monitored throughout
the year

Property
Holdings

0.090

0.054

(0.036)

(0.036)

Budget provision at the former Ty'r
Binwydden site has been utilised to finance
additional R&M at Custom House CP,
dilapidation works at Glanrafon and legal
fees for the Bailey Hill site.

Review of site budgets
necessary in line with asset
management programme

Property Asset &
Development

0.530

0.471

(0.059)

(0.054)

Net Vacancy Savings

Car Parks

0.025

0.074

0.049

0.028

Car Park income shortfalls at Holywell and
Mold have slightly increased at Period 10
but are partially offset by a reduced
maintenance programme. Back pay
totalling £15k is anticipated for Car Park
Attendants regarding overtime payable at
an enhanced rate for Saturday working.

Highways
Maintenance

2.712

2.766

0.054

0.051

Cost associated with attending flooding
events following substantial rainfall at
various times since July.




0S abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

ENVIRONMENT

APPENDIX 3

Service

Revised
Budget
(Em)

Projected
Outturn
(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Period 9
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Waste Disposal

& Waste
Collection

9.118

9.360

0.242

0.249

Delivery of the new Streetscene Service
resulted in unexpected additional
operational costs which have been
mitigated by increased recycling levels,
which not only reduce landfill and tipping
charges but increases the level of recycling
income received.

One off Agency and staff backfilling costs
as a result of the on-going investigation
within Waste have been incurred and in
addition, the energy generation from Gas
at the landfill sites has been affected by
problems with the performance of the Gas
Engines at both landfill sites. This has
resulted in a £145k shortfall against the
income target.

Work to realign budgets across the service

is on-going and will be in place for 2013/14
onwards.

Keep tonnage levels closely
monitored to establish if further
savings can be achieved to
further mitigate the costs.

Fleet Services

(0.026)

(0.061)

(0.035)

(0.038)

Outturn based on actual recharges to date
projected to financial year end with these
charges also reflected in all Environment
client budgets.

Planning Control

0.367

0.428

0.061

0.060

The costs associated with Planning
appeals i.e. specialist advice and legal fees
have been partially offset by Planning fee
income £28k in excess of target.

Partially offset by salary
savings within the Planning
service




TG obed

APPENDIX 3

ENVIRONMENT
Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)
Service ';euvc;zzg Pg::ﬁﬁt‘:‘d Variance \;ermc: Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Service 0.236 0.216 (0.020) (0.020)|Part time salary savings
Development &
Support
Management 1.164 1.046 (0.118) (0.118)|Vacancy Savings relating to 5 posts (2 x  |Provision will be made within
Support & Sc4, ScB6, SO1 & M6) ahead of Service Service budgets for the
Performance Review implementation offset by the cost |Modern Apprentice costs in
of Modern Apprentices from September 2013/14.
2012.
Public Protection 3.543 3.314 (0.229) (0.217)|Vacancy Savings totalling £230k (3 x EHO
2 x EO 1 x Admin) ahead of the Service
Review being implemented, offset by
income shortfalls in Pollution Control.
Markets (0.099) (0.081) 0.018 0.021|Rental income shortfalls from outdoor
pitches & car boot events due to poor
weather conditions.
Other variances 16.306 16.251 (0.055) (0.060)|A number of variances of no more than
(aggregate) £0.048m individually.
Total : 32.487 32.428 (0.059) (0.052)




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



‘puadsiano 1obBpnq aeio}oaiIq] 8y} ssalppe

abejusH pue

0} punj %004 8y} 0} juswjsnipe Jeak ul ue usaq sey a1y [(0£0°0) (z£0°0) 018'C 8v8'C alnyny ‘sauelqry
'SUOHN|OS [EJ1UID PUEB [BIDISWWOY) JO JUSWSA|OAULI PaNUIUOD
3y} yim pasnpal aney sjuswaoeld 1s02 ybiy |eianss ‘pieog
juswabeuepy AJunod Jo IO 8y} woij jsenbal e Buimolio (25 0) (9L5°0) 4 XA 659'C Aunoj jo 1o
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
U
padinbay uopoy aoueueA Jo asne) umm._—_woﬂ_u_._g adueUIRA v_“._u“uoﬁv WA_ HM““M_ 9JJAI0S

¥ XION3ddV

ONINYV3IT ONOT3dIN

(01 pouad) g1/z 10z Buuojuoy 3196png

Page 53



‘AiBuipiodoe pabieyoai
pue pajisiAal 8q O} aJe S90IAIeS
asau} 1o} sabieyoal ieak ul ay )

‘so|diound
ubisep |euonesiuebio jsiney

‘sainjonJjs Buiyels mau pasodoid
jo Ayqepioye jo sishjeuy

:s)nsai PIr o jdivoal Buimojjo4

'salji|1oe} ||e Je souewlouad
pue Aouaioile [euoielado
MB3IA3] 0} pajonpuod Bulag s| YJOAA

'S90IAIBS
alns|a JO ajoyMm 8y} ssoide
uayepapun Buiaq sI malnal Jley v

‘papunjun si Yyoiym

weGzo 03 Aq 9o sauoyds|s) ‘abesw ‘aoueusiurew ‘Buiues|o
10} S92IMIBG aIns|aT 10y s)s02 Aouednooo pasealdul

sey sIy} ‘J1oAaMOH (sao10 Aenp s ,yeuuo)) Buiiesen)
uoljeoojal woly Buiaes juesiubis e Bupjew ul pajsisse

Sey apisaa( 0} Je)s SadIAIeg aINsia JO Uoledo|al 8y

N 4% ir4
Buunp payuapl usaq aAey sainssaid Buimojjoy ay L

'$1$02-U0 Buipnjoul

WOz 03 0} Sjunowe siy} ‘'synsal DIr sy} pue ainoniisay
$82IAIBG aINsIaT 8y} usamiaq pasned sAejsp Buiwiy

0} anp pajabpnqgun ale sadlAlag ainsia] uiyim sisod aaiyl

‘suoljowoid pue saoud

uoIssILpe Ul sasealou| Aeuone)ul audsep si sy} ‘'sieah ¢

ISE| 8y} J9A0 Wg/ L 03 AQ paonpal sey aijua) ainsieT apiseaq
1e Buneys 891 WoJj swooul ‘ainjoid [euonieu sy} Yum aul| u|

*ZL/LL ul uonisod uinjno ainsiat] ay) pajoaye Alosiape
osje yoiym sanssj Jabpnq o110)s1y Jo Jaquinu e ale alay

(wL8°03 40 2unssaid) ainsid 690 1280 800°G IELY $30IAIRG BInsie
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Ujuon wnpno jobpng
paJsinbay uopoy aoueleA Jo asne) TR aoueleA pejosfoid T ELITVET

¥ XION3ddV

ONIN¥V3IT ONOT341T

(01 pouad) €1/z10z Buioyuop 196png

Page 54



sjebpng
0000 0000 1S6°LL 1G6°LL sjooyog pajebajeq
‘#1/€10Z 10} ainypuadxe
UO S|0JJUOD BI0W NP
0} pajedionue uey) Jailes dzd
wsws|duwn 03 Buidoy osje aje ap
‘A1@s0)2 palojuow aq 0} anuljuod “Jeindod 210w aW0%aq Sal|IoR) SB YIUoW Yoes sasealoul
1M sainby awoou| “pajuswa|du panuiuod oy Buimolje ajep 0} SWooul [enjo. Uo paseq mou
uaaq aney ainjipuadxa| ale suonioaloid awooul ainjn4 “ue|d ssauisng asuel|y au} Aq
Buisuoyine Joj sessasoid maN;| pejedioljue asoy) Jaw Jou aABY sainblj awooul 81jus2 aInsiaT
‘#L/€10¢ 10} paplgns useq "W/€0°03 Jo asealoul }sod e ul Buninsal sanigel|
sey siu) Joj piq ainssaud 196png v Jeuonippe paynuapl sey Buisuaoi) oisnw Jo mainal
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
ysuow wn)no 38bpng
pajinbay uopoy aJueleA JO asnen R CETE aoueleA petoefoid | pesiney ERTTVETS

¥ XIONIddV

ONIN¥V3T ONOT3IT

(01 pouad) £1/Z 10z Bunoyuow 386png

Page 55



vLigLoe
oI pJemio} Buinow ao1A19s

ay} Joj |apow |euonelado ue
Buisodoid podau e paonpoud sey
dnoub j08foid saoinleg aisny Byl

"wg Lo'03 o1 ajenba sbuines Bunejal sjooyos ayjo

Jouipy “ainjipuadxa pue awWodU| JO S|9AS)] JUSLIND UC paseq
wig Ll 03 J0 puadsiano ue Buiseosio) ase sadlaeg JISNN
(wo01°03) pajejay sjooyds

‘S13SYH PUB JUSWIUIBA0S) US[aAA

ay} 0} papuodas yejs 1o} sabieyosal o} pue ) 9| pue saiddns
uo ainypuadxs a|qeauan)jul 0} ajejal asay| ‘pajosioid aie
[B10} Ul W9 L'03 0} Buijenbs ssousioye Jouiw Jo Jaquinu Y
921A18g JuawaAolduw| jooyos

‘'sy11S dn uaye) Jou aAey sjooyos

aJaym seale Ul ainypuadxa aonpal 0} sainseaw Jo Jaguinu
"SYS Jelp-a1 0} & uaye)} aney siapjoy Jabpng ‘1 NG e Juswaaibe ue Bumojjo4

uayeuapun Bulaq Ajjualind s YIOAA (wisL 03 0 ainssaud) sy1s

‘sdnoibAejd pue saussinu
wouy Buipuny Aouabiawe 1o} s}sanbal Jomay Ul paynsal
sey Buipuny Ayjigeulelsns jo juswubieas sy ‘Buusyes

Page 56

pue |aAey} ‘BuiAdosoioyd Buipniour uonisod JeaA ul jjeiano ERITVETS
3y} ISISSE 0] paindas uaag aAey w9gQ 03 JO saloualoyg wswanoidw)
siea A Al1e3|py00 S¥0'0 /9t°0L 444" |00y
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
UJuo uinpnQ 396png
pasinbay uopoy aouelIBA JO asnen 1seonueLEN aJueBlBA peyosford | pesiey CRITVETS

¥ XION3ddV

ONIN¥V3IT ONOT34IT

(01 pouad) £1/210Z Bunojuol 1e6png



'¥L/€1L0Z 104 pIq ainssaid Jobpng
e pue ubisapai a2IAI8S pue uoljoe
juswabeuew jo Joslgns auy si sIyl

‘salouaIoIe
10} ABajelis paaibe ay) uswsidun
0] 8NUKUOD O} SPasU 9JIAIBS

‘ssaooud

196pnq #1/€102 9y} jo yed se
papiwgns uaaq aney spiq ainssaid
pue paiojuouw A)njaied Buiaq

"w.g0'03 Aq sease e
$S0.108 ainjipuadxa pajaafold paonpal sey 82IAI9S YINOA 3Y L
921MI9G YINoA

‘aoe|d

Buniey Ananoe Buiues)d jo |9As] 1aMOo) B UM 3|qeulepieun
S yoIym sjsixa ||is jebie} swoou; abie| y ‘says Js|lews
JaYJo SWoOoSs pue JoBJjuod SHN0YD MET 8y} Wolj pajessush
sn|dins ay} JoAodai 0} 9jgeun s| 891nag Bulues|d ay )

‘ABajesys

SIY} JO SISBQ U} WO 0} pash aq Sey MalAal FSdY Uelp

8yl ‘Juawainsoid/uononpal }S09 ‘s,NUaLW pawsyyparoidul
‘saibajelis dn-aye} paseaioul Bupsbie; ‘Buipueiqgai

‘sjuaied Joj sjuauAed aul-uo se yons sjoafoid eI ssiuiepowt
0} s|jesodoud [eaipes Buidojaasp s 92188 Bulisyed sy
wggs 03 Jo ainssaud - sadiAleg Ajj1oed

‘apew usaq
os|e aAeY wggo'03 0} Buienba ainypuadxa pajosfoid Jayjo ul
suoljonpail Joull\ ‘106png woisse|D a)iqoy 8y} Uo apew uaaqg

sey wyL}'03 jo Buines v -ajew|o o1ouo9s ayy ul sabueyo
JO 8sneoaq (SUOISSIWA) PUB S|EaW |00Y9dS 9a1)) sjjeuaq
idnd uo pajedionue Ajjuaiind s w9Zz 03 JO ainssaid

S$32IN0S3Y

aJe Jobpnq ay} jo sjuswae yjog (w50°03 Jo ainssaid) sjun 821MIBS 6050 9G€°0 8922l ZL6°LL % Juswdojensg
‘puadsiano
ajei039a.1g ay) Bulonpail ul jsisse o} wpz'03 Aq siseq
}JO-8u0 B uo ainjipuadxa 8onpal o0} pafeuew sey Jyun 19l 2yl
Jun 191
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
T T Yyuow wnuno | 3ebpng
palinbay uoljoy dJueLIBA JO asne) 158 9oUBLIEA ddueuep pejoefold | pesiney 9JJAIDS

¥ XION3ddV

ONINYVY3T ONOT341T

(01 pouad) g1/z10Z Bunoyuop 106png

Page 57



v29°0 vzl 0 659°0LL  [s€6°60L jejol
‘w003 0}
ajenba asay| ‘uiwpy |eisuas B Juswabeueyy ul ainypuadxs
pajoafoid ul suoaNPal JOUIW JO Jaquinu B usaq aARY @iyl
ujupy |eJauas g Juswabeuepy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yyjuow wnpno | jebpng
pasynbay uonoy doueLIeA JO asned 1587 90UBLEA aodueuep pejosfoig | pesiaey CRINYETS

¥ XION3ddV

ONIN¥VIT ONOT3HIT

(01 pousad) g1/z10z Bunoyuop Je6png

Page 58



6S obed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

CORPORATE SERVICES

. Revised | Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Last Month Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Chief Executive 2.346 2.336 (0.010) (0.010)[(£0.016m) vacancy savings.

£0.014m pressure relating to a
voluntary sector contribution towards
Dangerpoint.

(£0.008m) other minor variances.

APPENDIX 5




09 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

CORPORATE SERVICES

APPENDIX 5

. Revised | Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Last Month Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Finance 4.351 4.656 0.305 0.379|£0.028m pressure relating to the Finance to investigate

Royal Mail price increases of 39% in
April 2012.

£0.269m pressure relating to
workforce costs in Revenues &
Benefits because of additional work
in preparation for Welfare Reform
and the new Council Tax Support
Scheme.

£0.035m pressure relating to a
benefits system software upgrade.
£0.025m investment in Agile
Working (Revs & Bens).

£0.042m pressure relating to
additional audit days.

£0.048m pressure on reallocations
due to income budgets no longer
being achievable.

(£0.112m) additional income for
Council Tax Reduction Scheme
Transition Grant.

(£0.084m) vacancy savings relating
to the Corporate Finance Review.
£0.054m other minor variances.

alternatives to Royal Mail.

The additional workforce costs
relating to welfare reform are
one-off and will be reduced
where possible.




T9 abed

APPENDIX 5

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10) CORPORATE SERVICES
Service I;z‘:;;z‘: Pg::ﬁﬁtid Variance LZ:tr ':;Ir:::h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Legal & Democratic 3.341 3.196 (0.145) (0.131)|£0.005m pressure translation of Request to carry forward Case

Services Constitution. File & Jaws b/fwd from 11/12
(£0.118m) Members Special (£22K).
Responsibility Allowances. Request to carry forward
(£0.015m) Members Training & underspend for Community
Travel Expenses. Review Consultation (£10Kk).
£0.053m Salary changes.
£0.020m Legal Advice Jillings.
(£0.020m) Legal Fees charged.
(£0.070m) other minor variances.

Human Resources 2.199 2.233 0.034 0.051|£0.051m pressure CRB checks. A budget pressure for CRB

& Organisational

Development

£0.014m pressure Corporate
Training.

£0.046m loss of income from
external organisations.
(£0.076m) Vacancy Savings.
(£0.001m) other minor variances.

Risk of pressures will arise if funding
is not made available for OD, iTrent
implementation and Single Status
project team costs.

checks has been submitted as
part of the 2013/14 budget
process.

Request to carry forward
£170k Modern Trainee budget
which will be required in
2013/14.




29 abed

APPENDIX 5

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10) CORPORATE SERVICES
Service I;T,::;Zi? Pé?ﬁf.t:.d Variance LZ:: ':;Ir;:ﬁh Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
ICT & Customer 5.412 5.408 (0.004) (0.038)[£0.006m pressure relating to the Request to carry forward:
Services final Design & Print costs. £46k for Event and Log
£0.032m pressure in relation to the |Management (project delay).
Print Rationalisation Project. £16k for Egress Switch Secure
(£0.067m) vacancy savings relating (Email (project delay).
to ongoing service reviews. £46k for remaining 20% of
£0.066m pressure relating to internal [Civica EDRMS contract as
admin support recharges. milestones have yet to be
(£0.014m) efficiency in relation to  [achieved.
additional registars income. £359k for PSBA (project delay
(£0.027m) other minor variances. |0 ensure benefits from
advances in broadband
The risk of a pressure may arise if ~ |téchnologies are maximised).
funding is not made available for the [£11k for the Capita One
Holywell Flinshire Connects Project (this is a regional
operational costs. project fund to support a
regional service not FCC
budget).
Total : 17.649 17.829 0.180 0.251




€9 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 9)

CENTRAL CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Revised | Projected Variance
Service y Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Financing & Funding 2.365 2.357 (0.008) (0.032)|There is additional windfall income of Levels of unbudgeted income will

(insurance, banking

etc.)

£0.081m, which takes account of the recent
settlement by Welsh Government of the
Council's claim for additional costs for staff
time incurred on the Housing stock transfer
consultation/ballot project. Windfall income
levels will be monitored closely and reported
on in future monitoring reports.

A saving of £0.061m has been identified due
to a budget provision within an insurance
fund (relating to a potential liability for historic
asbestos issues) which is now not required

Additional windfall income of £0.090m had
previously been anticipated in respect of
settlement of an outstanding claim re.
overpayment of VAT due to the impact of
legal challenges to custom and practice
elsewhere. A recent Tribunal decision found
in favour of HMRC in respect of one of the
outstanding cases, although it is considered
that there are grounds for appeal. This
remains one of several ongoing cases which
may bring additional "windfall" income to the
Council in the future, although it is now
considered less likely that it will be in the
current financial year.

continue to be monitored closely
and reported on in future
monitoring reports.

Keep under review

A number of outstanding VAT
claims which may result in
"windfall" income will be kept
under review pending legal
deteminations and possible
appeals.




9 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 9)

CENTRAL CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Service

Revised
Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

The base budget provides for additional
windfall income of £0.152m. The amount
received to date suggests that we there will
be a shortfall of £0.100m against this sum.
One of the reasons for this is the levels of
successful appeals against NDR valuations
has reduced sharply in the current year with
a consequent impact on the retrospective
rebates of NDR in respect of Council
properties.

An overspend on additional superannuation
costs of £0.044m in respect of added years
granted to fomer employees early
retirements prior to the 1996 Local
Government reorganisation.

A decrease in other miscellaneous
Expenditure of £0.010m.

All significant overspends will be
monitored monthly. Opportunities
for budget realignment within the
Central & Corporate Finance
budgets will be explored and
actioned where possible.

Corporate - other

2.758

2.483

(0.275)

(0.261)

An overspend of £0.079m against the
regional transformation fund following
external audit requirements of the lead
authority (Conwy CBC) on accounting
treatment of balances.

A small surplus of £0.045m from the phased
funding strategy to address the Council's
share of the Clwyd Pension Fund deficit
following the 2010 actuarial valuation.

This is a one-off budget pressure
in 12/13. Notification by Conwy of
the change in treatment was not
received until after the 12/13
budget was approved.




G9 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 9)

CENTRAL CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Service

Revised
Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

An underspend of £0.240m resulting from
salary budget efficiencies previously
achieved following historic service reviews

An increased surplus of £0.032m on the
rebates recovered from use of the Matrix
framework for procurement of agency

An underspend of £0.021m resulting from
salary budget provision for incremental pay
awards for Directors and second tier officers
which will not now be utilised this year.

Other minor variances amounting to a net
underspend of £0.016m.

Central Loans &
Investment Account

14.200

13.869

(0.331)

(0.331)

Increased interest received on temporary
investments £0.060m, increased internal
interest received on prudential borrowing
£0.025m, increase in other internal interest
£0.005m

Reduction in interest payable on variable rate
market loans and internal interest payable
£0.176m, reduction in Minimum Revenue
provision (MRP) £0.013m, reduction in
prudential borrowing costs £0.052m

Central Service
Recharges

(2.054)

(1.776)

0.278

0.278

Shortfall of £0.192m of internal income
recovered from trading accounts and the
HRA, plus £0.085m impact of review of
internal recharges from Service Level

Agreements.

Support Service basis and
allocations are currently being
reviewed as part of the Finance
Workstream of Flintshire Futures.




99 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 9)

CENTRAL CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Revised | Projected Variance
Service y Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Other variances - 6.869 6.868 (0.001) (0.001)
aggregate
Total : 24.138 23.801 (0.337) (0.347)




APPENDIX 7

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2012

Less - Base Level (inclusive of increase of
£0.088m agreed as part of the 2012/13
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

2011/12 approvals

Less amount approved in 2011/12 as being
ringfenced for Investment in Change

Less allocation from contingency reserve to
meet one-off / time limited costs in 2012/13
(approved in 2012/13 budget and allowed for
in calculation of 2011/12 final outturn on
contingency reserve)

2012/13 approvals

Less - allocation from contingency reserve as
a one-off investment to support the new
Leisure facilities in their first year of operation
(approved in Month 3 report)

Less - Impact of provision for MMI scheme of
arrangement - as approved by Cabinet on
19" February

Plus release of an amount previously
earmarked for a specific purpose (no longer
needed due to receipt of a capital grant)

Add Projected underspend as at 31%' March
2013

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1%
March for funding of one-off costs in the

2013/14 budget proposals

Projected Level of Total Contingency
Reserve as at 315 March 2013

Page 67

£m £m

9.029
(5.564)

3.465
(1.500)
(0.973)

(2.473)
(0.361)
(0.770)
0.025

(1.106)

1.305

1.191

(0.297)

0.894



Page 68



69 abed

Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 10)

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

APPENDIX 8

. Revised Projected . \ELELIED . . .
Service Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Finance and Support 2,506 2,261 -245 -241|Support recharges revised Work is ongoing to progress
downwards to reflect 2011/12 costs. |accuracy and timeliness of the
Vacancy savings. HRA support recharges.
Repairs and 8,778 8,629 -149 -151(Materials revised downwards due to
Maintenance lower than anticipated spend through
the cold weather. The projection for
transport costs has been reduced
following a more up to date picture of
actual costs in the financial ledger.
Landlord Services 303 250 -53 -52
Rents -25,560 -25,558 2 1|Variance based on 14 more
properties than anticipated at budget.
Capital Financing 2,349 2,259 -90 -90|Reduction on projected interest on
loans charge.
CERA 4,652 4,687 35 35|A further £0.250m has been
transferred from balances to CERA
as agreed with Cabinet Members.
This is to fund £0.125m for damp
fans and £0.125m for external
refurbishment works.
Other variances 7,974 7,983 9 27
(aggregate)
Total : 1,002 511 -491 -471




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 3 -
OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2012

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Scrutiny Members with an update for the third quarter 2012/13. This
report provides details of the following:

Establishment

Headcount

Agency

Early Retirements (First and third quarter reports only)
Turnover

Diversity

Absence

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The format of the detailed Workforce Information report was approved by
Scrutiny on 9 March 2009 and agreed by Corporate Management Team on 26
March 2009.

2.02 This report now includes additional details on agency workers, including number
of placements, level of spend and the savings which have been achieved
through the Matrix contract and information on Early Retirements, the latter being
reported bi-annually (first and third quarter reports).

2.03 The format of this accompanying report has been adapted to provide
commentary on changes and trends that have occurred during the quarter on an
exceptional basis.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

Establishment
3.01  There have been three main changes to this report:

1) Positions for relief and school supply workers have been identified and
removed

Page 71



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

3.06

2) Removal of occupied positions where the individual had not been paid in the
previous 12 months, as at 28 February 2013

3) All positions which were vacant as at 30 June 2012. There is an assumption,
in these cases, that if positions are still vacant after six months that they are no
longer be required.

This work has resulted in a reduction in all three areas i.e. the number of
positions has dropped by 32.44%, the number of vacancies has dropped by
35.3% and the total number of occupied positions has dropped by 30.72%.

Moving forward, the actions taken in steps (2) and (3) above will be monitored on
a monthly basis. It is anticipated that this work will provide a more accurate
position on vacancies, despite on-going organisational change.

Headcount
There are no major changes in trends to report.

Agency
The statistics below provide a breakdown of spend and net savings per month
during the third quarter.

Month Spend £ Net Savings £ Sav?:\egts %
October | £307,857.73 £37,228.21 12.09%
November | £326,594.21 £38,540.39 11.80%
December | £316,917.46 £38,107.04 12.02%

Figures taken from Matrix on 31% December indicate 175 placements were
active, a decrease of 26% when compared to figures for the same date in the
previous financial year.

Year 2011 2012
October 278 200
November 252 173
December 237 175

In line with the AWR (Agency Workers Regulations), temporary workers are
entitled to equal treatment after 12 weeks in the job, this relates to basic
employment and working conditions. The Council monitors the number of
placements exceeding 12 weeks and where appropriate have taken steps to
reduce those that exceed this duration. Figures taken from the Matrix placement
report at the end of December 2012 indicate that the number of placements over
12 weeks has dropped by 4% in comparison with figures for December 2011.

The Agency net savings for the third quarter for the financial year 2012/13 are
£95,938.84, compared to £111,891.36 savings for the same quarter in the

Page 72



3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

financial year 2011/12. This is mainly due to 10.5% reduction in spend this
quarter, when compared to the same period in the previous year.

In October 2012, the contract between Flintshire County Council and neutral
vendor, Matrix SCM, was extended for an additional period of 12 months. This
was in agreement with collaborative partners, Denbighshire County Council and
Wrexham County Borough Council.

Early Retirements

There were 7 Early Retirements for the period July to December 2012. All of
these Early Retirements were on the grounds of redundancy, with a total cost of
£76,635.04.

These figures are based on pension strain only and may be subject to change
based upon the receipt of late paperwork and the delay in payments being made
in the next period.

Turnover
The turnover this quarter is at the lowest for this year so far and it is almost half
the rate when compared to the same period last year.

Of this quarter’s turnover, the largest group of leavers have been as a result of
individuals leaving voluntarily.

Diversity

Following through on our commitment given in the Strategic Equalities Objective
this quarter shows an extension in the number of protected characteristics
reported in the Diversity section.

Following the Equalities Act 2010 coming into effect nine protected
characteristics were introduced. These being:

Age

Gender

Disability

Ethnicity

Religion or belief

Sexual orientation
Transgender

Marital status

and

Pregnancy and maternity

Absence

With regards to the third quarter's absence the number of days lost has
increased slightly when comparing it to the same period last year. The late
submission of paperwork from the Directorates confirming that employees have
returned back to work, usually leads to this figure reducing as we move through
year.

Page 73



3.12

Average FTE Days Lost

All All All All
Wales Wales Wales Wales
2008/ Avg 2009/ Avg 2010/ Avg 2011/ Avg 2012/ 2012/
09 Whole 10 Whole 1" Whole 12 Whole 13 13
Actual Year Actual Year Actual Year Actual Year Actual | Target
FCC 2008/09 FCC 2009/10 FCC 2010/11 FCC 2011/12 FCC FCC
Qtr 1 2.63 2.42 2.27 2.27 2.52 2.30
Qtr 2 2.37 2.33 2.19 217 2.13 2.00
Qtr 3 3.28 3.03 2.87 2.89 3.26 2.50
Qtr 4 3.32 3.04 3.03 3.21 3.00
Whole
Year 11.61 11.5 10.83 10.9 10.36 10.34 10.54 10.9 7.91 9.80

An additional absence report has been introduced this quarter. This report shows
the breakdown of absence reasons by long and short term periods.

This report aligns to the breakdown developed as part of our benchmarking work
across Wales. This means that each service area can now compare its long and
short term absence at each level of the Organisation, throughout Wales.

There is a continued programme of attendance management reporting and action
planning across each Directorate. Absences reporting, containing trigger reports,
produced on a monthly basis are issued to managers. With the support of the HR
team focus is made on frequent, short term absences, long term absences and
return to work interviews, with employees, to understand any underlying issues
affecting attendance at work.

Whilst various services within the Council have been challenging the use of the
category ‘Other’ to report on the reasons for absence, managers and employees
will be required to state and record the actual reason for absence with effect from
1%t May. This will enable more specific information to be captured to improve the
analysis and to allow for appropriate measures and interventions to be
implemented.

Where necessary, capability measures are taken to address poor attendance.
This includes first stage disciplinary through to dismissal.

The review of the Attendance Management Strategy has been completed and
focused work is being undertaken between HR / Occupational Health and
Directorate Management Teams to implement early interventions to reduce levels
of sickness absence, e.g. Environment and Community Services. The
Physiotherapy pilot in Streetscene has commenced but it is too early at this stage
to evaluate the impact.

Page 74



3.13

3.14

3.156

3.16

100% Attendance - Flintshire

When looking at the third quarter 67% of all employees have had 100%
attendance. This represents a reduction when compared with the same quarter
last year. Overall this means that 7,442 employees did not have any sickness
absence during the third quarter of 2012/13.

2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13
Actual Actual Actual
Quarter 1 78 77 75
Quarter 2 78 84 80
Quarter 3 65 75 67
Quarter 4 69 67
Whole
Year 40 42

100% Attendance by Directorate

When looking at each Directorate, Corporate Services and Lifelong Learning
have the highest rates of 100% attendance at 74% and 72% respectively. These
figures are between 7% and 5% higher than the rate for the Council.

201112 2012/13

Whole Whole
Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 Year Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | Year

Community Services | 74 | 78 | 70 | 65 34 69 | 71 | 63

Corporate Services 79 | 86 | 80 | 73 44 81|83 | 74

Environment 76 | 78 | 77 | 70 45 76 | 74 | 66
Lifelong Learning 76 |82 |77 | 70 43 78 | 79 | 72
Schools 77 | 89 | 74 | 65 45 76 | 85 | 65

Community Services

Long term absence continues to have the most significant impact across all
services. Senior Managers and HR are agreeing targeted interventions to
improve attendance across the Directorate. One of the proposals to be
discussed is the development of a pathway to enable employees to return to the
workplace as soon as possible. This pathway will involve early intervention by
managers to identify alternative work opportunities where employees are
temporarily unable to return to their substantive role for health reasons. These
supportive measures should result in employees returning to work much sooner.

Corporate Services

Absence continues to be pro-actively managed by respective DMTs in line with
the Attendance Management policy. Days lost are marginally down on a “like for
like” basis with 2011/12 for the third quarter in a row. There is no complacency
and attendance remains high on respective DMT agendas.

Page 75



3.17

3.18

3.19

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

Environment

Absence levels have increased in 4 out of the 6 service areas in Quarter 3
compared to Quarter 2. Short-term, recurring absences continue to be a priority
with interventions including the actioning of dismissals across the respective
service areas. Long-term absences have also increased and management
teams are working with HR and Occupational Health colleagues to establish the
long-term prognosis of those cases in order to expedite ill-health dismissals
where appropriate. Work is being undertaken within the Directorate to challenge
the use of ‘Other’ as a reason for absence.

Lifelong Learning

There has been an increase in the absence levels in Lifelong Learning in quarter
3 compared to quarter 2, although this does reflect last year’s trend. Monthly
meetings to monitor sickness absence and the actions being undertaken within
service areas continue. A further dismissal was made on grounds of ill health
capability this quarter.

Schools

Within Schools, the levels of absence have increased by approximately half a
day when compared with the same period last year. Despite this, Schools have
the second lowest level of sickness absence this quarter when compared to the
Council as a whole.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members note Workforce Information Report for the third quarter 2012/13.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Increased accuracy of reporting of the employed workforce and agency workers
will allow the Council to better understand and therefore both plan and manage
the largest single cost of service delivery.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

This increased reporting and monitoring within this area will result in more
informed analysis of the impact our policies and procedures have across these
groups.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

Page 76



10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Already undertaken with Corporate Management Team and Equalities Unit.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Available in Members’ Services.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Helen Stappleton
Telephone: 01352 702720
Email: helen.stappleton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Agenda Item 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: DEMOCRACY AND GOVERNANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: INFORMATION COMMISSIONER’S OFFICE

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

DATA PROTECTION AUDIT

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform the committee of the audit being undertaken by the
Information Commissioner’s office (ICO).

BACKGROUND

The ICO is the body responsible for both providing advice and
guidance on the Data Protection Act and issuing sanctions for breach
of the Act. The ICO does not have the power to unilaterally audit local
authorities Data Protection arrangements. It does however, approach
local authorities for their agreement to carryout such an audit.
Flintshire was approached and agreed to such a voluntary audit.

In a telephone conference on the 28 February it was agreed that the
following three areas would be covered by the audit :-

* Records Management - The processes in place for managing both
electronic and manual records containing personal data. This will
include controls in place to monitor the creation, maintenance,
storage, movement, retention and destruction of personal data
records.

« Data Sharing - The design and operation of controls to ensure the
sharing of personal data complies with the principles of the Data
Protection Act 1998 and the good practice recommendations set
out in the Information Commissioner's, Data Sharing Code of
Practice.

* Training and Awareness - The provision and monitoring of staff
Data Protection training and the awareness of Data Protection
requirements relating to their roles and responsibilities.

The ICO wanted to work within Community Services and to
concentrate on one team within Children’s Social Services and one
team within Adult Social Services. The teams that the Council has
chosen are the Family Placement Team and the North West Locality
Team.

Page 79



3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

CONSIDERATIONS

Two staff from the ICO are conducting a range of interviews with
relevant staff on the 16", 17" and 18" April. A member of the
Council’s Internal Audit Team will attend some of the interviews to
help develop the Council’'s own Data Protection audits for the future.
Following the on-site visit a report will be prepared with
recommendations to improve existing arrangements. A summary of
the report will subsequently appear on the ICO’s website. The
findings of the audit will be reported to this committee and
subsequently to the Audit Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To note the position.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None as a result of this report.

APPENDICES

None

Page 80



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

E-mail from David Webster dated 1 March 2013.

Contact Officer: Peter Evans
Telephone: 01352 702304
Email: peter.j.evans@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: 18™ APRIL 2013

REPORT BY: HOUSING & LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
FACILITATOR

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 ltems feed into a Committee's Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be referred
by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council, or Directors.
Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work Programme and
the Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful or a 'test of
significance' to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council's priorities and/or objectives?

Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

How, where and why were the issues identified?

Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any
evidence of this? Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction?

Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

robN=

No o

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine
the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they are
members. By reviewing and prioritising the forward work programme
Members are able to ensure it is member-led and includes the right issues.
A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for
Members' consideration which has been updated following the last meeting.

Page 83



400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme attached
as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 N/A

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.
Contact Officer: Ceri Owen

Telephone: 01352 702305
Email: ceri.owen@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 84



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

cqQ abed

DATE SUBJECT 0&sS REPORT FROM
FOCUS
:gﬁrsﬁ/?:;/ Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 11 Monitoring HF
2013 Annual Improvement Report 2012 by the Auditor General Information and discussion CE
for Wales
Management and leadership Development Programme Information and discussion H of HR & OD
Physiotherapy pilot progress report Information and discussion H of HR & OD
Procurement as a Flintshire Futures workstream Monitoring and development Hof HR & OD
Workforce Information Q4 Monitoring and development H of HR & OD
Regional Closed Circuit Television Service Information and discussion CE
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
Iggrjsr?g Q4 performance Reporting Monitoring and development MEM
2013 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 1 Monitoring HF
Welfare Reform Update Information and discussion HF
Finance as a Flintshire Futures workstream Monitoring and development HF
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\0\7\AlI00003703\$hzn5wgwr.doc Last printed 12/04/2013 10:31 AM

Page 1 of 3



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

qQ abed

Th?hrsday Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (final out turn) Monitoring HF
117 July
2103 Medium Term Financial Plan Information and discussion HF
Assets as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly Monitoring and development
update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13) HAT
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
September | Workforce as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly | Monitoring and development Hof HR & OD
2013 update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13)
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 3 Monitoring HF
Q1 Performance Reporting Monitoring and development MEM
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
October Customer Services as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6
2013 monthly update, as per the resolution of the committee on | Monitoring and development H of ICT&CS
17/1/13)
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 4 Monitoring HF
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
November | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 5 Monitoring HF
2013
Procurement as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 Monitoring and development H of ICT&CS
monthly update, as per the resolution of the committee on
17/1/13)
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\0\7\AlI00003703\$hzn5wgwr.doc Last printed 12/04/2013 10:31 AM

Page 2 of 3



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

December | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 6 Monitoring HF
2013
Q2 Performance reporting Monitoring and development MEM

Finance as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly

update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13) | Monitoring and development HF
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

January Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 7 Monitoring HF
2ot Assets as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly Monitoring and development HAT

update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13)

Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

/g8 abed

Legend: CE = Chief Executive; HF = Head of Finance; H of HR&OD = Head of Human Resources & Organisational Development;
H of ICT&CS = Head of ICT & Customer Service; H of L&DS = Head of Legal & Democratic Services; HAT = Head of Assets &
Transportation; MEM = Member Engagement Manager

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\0\7\AlI00003703\$hzn5wgwr.doc Last printed 12/04/2013 10:31 AM Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Customer Services as a Flintshire Futures workstream
	5 Fair Debt Policy
	Enc. 1 for Fair Debt Policy

	6 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 2 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 3 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 4 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 5 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 201213 Month 10 version 1
	Enc. 6 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 7 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 8 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10
	Enc. 9 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 Month 10

	7 Workforce Information Quarter 3 - October - December 2012
	8 Information Commissioner's Office Data Protection Audit
	9 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for CR Forward Work Programme


